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Financial Highlights

In thousands of naira

2017 2016 %

Revenue         3,092,445         2,602,824         19 

Gross profit         1,273,077         1,111,631         15 

Operating profit            339,524            278,317         22 

Profit before tax            339,456            271,770         25 

Profit for the year            246,276            224,007         10 

Share capital            144,912            144,912          -   

Total equity         2,641,145         2,604,181           1 

Data per 50k share

Basic earnings per share (kobo)                     85                     77         10 

Declared dividend*                     50                     75       (33)

Net assets per share (kobo)                       9                       9          -   

Dividend per 50k share in respect of

current year results only

Dividend proposed (kobo)**                     50 

Stock Exchange Quotation 

31 December (Naira per share)                       8                       6         41 

Market capitalisation at

   31 December (N’millions)                2,855                1,855         54 

*Declared dividend represents the dividend proposed for the preceding year but declared during the current

year.

**The directors propose a dividend of xx kobo (2016: 50 kobo) per share on the issued share capital of

289,823,447 (2015: 289,823,447) ordinary shares of 50k each, subject to the approval by the shareholders at

the Annual General Meeting.
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Directors' Report

For the year ended 31 December 2017

1 About the Company

2 Summary of the Financial Statements

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Revenue 3,092,445   2,602,824  

Results from operating activities 339,524      278,317     

Profit before tax 339,456      271,770     

Profit for the year 246,276      224,007     

Total comprehensive income for the year 265,250      234,219     

3 Dividend

4 Corporate Governance

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5 Board of Directors

5.1

Role In The Larger Society: Berger Paints Nigeria Plc. remains undisputedly, a leading paints manufacturer in this country,

and as an integral part of the Nigerian society, the Company plays numerous roles. Apart from being a major employer of

labour, Berger Paints is a supplier, a customer, a partner as well as a willing taxpayer. In doing all these, the Company

impacts on the society in no small way. The Company’s relationship with the shareholders and stakeholders is cordial and

objective.

Integrity: The Company strives to maintain the highest standards of integrity in its operations. Accordingly, the Company

condemns and does not give nor receive directly or otherwise any bribes, gratifications or obtain improper advantages for any

business or financial gains. It is our policy to avoid any situation that will impact negatively on our operations.

Composition of the Board and Attendance at Meetings: During the year under review, the Company was managed by a Board

of ten Directors consisting of two Independent Non-Executive Directors (which included the Chairman), seven Non-

Executive Directors and one Executive Director (i.e. the Managing Director). The Board met 4 times in 2017. In compliance

with Section 258(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004, the record

of Directors’ attendance at Board meetings is exhibited for inspection at the meeting. It is summarized hereunder:

The Directors are pleased to present to the distinguished members this Annual Report, together with the Audited Financial Statements of 

the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2017.

The Company was incorporated in Nigeria as a private limited liability company on 9th January, 1959 and was converted to a

public limited liability company in 1973. The Company’s shares were quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange with effect from

14th March, 1974. Its subsidiary, Lewis Berger Paints Ghana Limited, was incorporated in Ghana with effect from 22nd October,

2013 as a private limited liability company. The principal activities of the Company remain the manufacturing and marketing of

paints and allied products.

Information relating to changes in fixed assets during the year is indicated in the notes to the financial statements. In the opinion of

the Directors, the fair value of the Company’s properties is not substantially less than the value shown in the Financial Statements.

The summary of the results is as follows:

The Directors are pleased to recommend to shareholders, the payment of a dividend of * per share for the 2017 financial year which

amounts to NXX million, subject to the approval of the members of the Annual General Meeting (2016: N144,912,000), that is, 50

kobo per share). If approved, the dividend will be paid less withholding tax to members whose names appear in the Company’s

Register of Members as at the close of business on May 11, 2018.

Whistleblowing: The Board encourages the exposure of unethical practices and all reported cases are investigated while the

whistle blower is protected. Our Whistle Blowing Policy is displayed throughout our premises and on our website. Berger

Paints Nigeria Plc. conducts its business with integrity and diligence and with total consideration for the interest of the

shareholders and other stakeholders.

Respect For Law: Berger Paints Nigeria Plc. ensures that its existence and operations remain within the law and its

employees are required to comply with the laws and regulations of Nigeria. To this end, the Company has a Code of Ethics

which is publicly available and subscribed to by directors, staff and contractors. The Company, being a listed Company

strives to comply with all laws and regulations, including post-listing requirements of the Nigerian Stock Exchange and the

Rules and Regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, as well as the Code of Corporate Governance. To this

end, returns were made periodically to the relevant regulatory authorities as at when due.
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SN Member 23-Mar 27-Jul Oct. 26 Dec. 14 No. (4) %

1.   Dr. Oladimeji Alo Present Present Present Present 4 100

2.   Mr. Abi Ayida Present Present Present Present 4 100

3.   Chief Musa Danjuma Apology Present Present Present 3 75

4.   Mr. Nelson Nweke Present Present Present Present 4 100

5.   Mr. Wole Abegunde Present Present Present Apology 3 75

6.   Mr. Raj Mangtani Present Present Present Apology 3 75

7.   Mr. Kunle Olowokande Present Apology Present Present 3 75

8.   Engr. Patrick Buruche Present Present Present Present 4 100

9.   Mr. Sanjay Datwani Present Apology Present Present 3 75

10.   Mr. Peter Folikwe Present Present Present Present 4 100

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Director 

Direct 

Interest

Indirect 

Interest

Dr. Oladimeji Alo 2,012,000 None

Mr. Abi Ayida 625,601 Jurewa

Chief Musa Danjuma 3,442,372 None

Mr. Nelson Nweke 234,320 None

Mr. Oluwole Abegunde None None

Mr. Raj Mangtani None None

Mr. Adekunle Olowokande 197,965 None

Engr. Patrick Buruche 272,336 None

Mr. Sanjay Datwani None None

Mr. Peter Folikwe 7,000 None

5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.6.3 Applicable accounting standards are followed;

5.6.4

5.6.5

Board Appointments: There were no changes to the composition of the Board during the year under review. In practice,

directors are appointed in line with articulated guidelines, taking into consideration various factors, including the nominee’s

profile, other commitments and value addition to the Company. 

Board Training: Directors have the opportunity to attend programs, relating to governance and business practices, as part of

their continuing education. New directors undergo an induction program to familiarize themselves with the operations of the

Company.

Directors retiring by rotation: The Directors retiring by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association

are Dr. Oladimeji Alo, Mr. Nelson Nweke and Mr. Abi Ayida who, being eligible offer themselves for re-election.

Registrar services, through Meristem Registrars Limited.

Raw materials and product formulation, through Emychem Nigeria Ltd.

None

None

Raw materials, through Clayton Finance Ltd. 

None

Directors’ Interest in Shares: The interests of each Director in the shares of the Company, as at 31st December 2017, as

recorded in the Register of Members and/or notified by the Directors for the purpose of section 275 of the Companies and

Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004, and disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules

of Nigerian Stock Exchange are as stated below, along with the their interests in contracts:

Interest in Contracts

Human capital services, through Excel Professional Services Ltd.

None 

None 

None 

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, unless it is presumed that the Company will not

continue in business.

Directors’ Responsibilities: Berger Paints is committed to the highest ethical standards and best practices. The Board

actively monitors the operations of the Company and is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company by

taking reasonable steps for the prevention/detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Directors are responsible for the

preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of each

financial year, and of the profit or loss for that year, in compliance with the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20,

Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004. In so doing, the Directors ensure that:

Proper accounting records are kept which disclose with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Company and

which ensure that Financial Statements comply with the requirements of Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20,

Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004;

Appropriate internal control procedures are established which, as far as is reasonably possible, safeguard the assets of

the Company, prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities;

Suitable accounting policies are adopted, consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgments and estimates; 
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6 Board Committees

6.1

S/N Member Jan. 25 21-Mar 20-Apr 19-Jul Oct. 23 Dec. 12 No. (6) %

1.   Present Present Present Present Present N/A 5 83

2.   Present Apology Present Apology Present N/A 3 50

3.   Present Present Present Apology Apology Present 3 50

4.   Present Present Apology Apology Present Present 4 67

5.   Present Present Present Apology Present Present 5 83

6.   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Present 1 17

7.   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Apology 0 0

8.   Present Present Present Present Present Apology 5 83

6.2

S/N Member 16-Mar 13-Apr 13-Jul Oct. 23 Dec. 12 No. (5) %

1.       Present Present Present Present N/A 4 80

2.       Present Present Present Present N/A 4 80

3.       Present Present Apology Present N/A 3 60

4.       Present Present Present Present Present 5 100

5.       N/A N/A N/A N/A Present 1 20

6.       N/A N/A N/A N/A Present 1 20

7.       N/A N/A N/A N/A Apology 0 0

6.3

S/N 18-Jul Nov. 6 Nov. 21 Nov. 27 No. (4) %

1.       Present N/A N/A N/A 1 25

2.       Present N/A N/A N/A 1 25

3.       Present N/A N/A N/A 1 25

4.       Apology N/A N/A N/A 0 0

5.       Present Present Present Present 4 100

6.       N/A Present Present Present 3 75

7.       N/A Present Present Apology 2 50

8.       N/A Apology Present Present 2 50

9.       N/A Present Apology Present 2 50

10.    Present Present Present Apology 3 75

7 Audit Committee

S/N 21-Mar 22-Mar 26-Jul Oct. 25 Dec. 5 No. (5) %

1.       Present Present Present Present Present 5 100

2.       Present Present Present Present Present 5 100

3.       Present Present Present Present Present 5 100

4.       Apology Apology Present Present Apology 2 40

5.       Present Present Present Apology Present 4 80

6.       Present Present Apology Present Present 4 80

In conformity with the Code of Best Practices in Corporate Governance, the Finance & General Purpose Committee,

Establishment, Remuneration & Governance Committee and Strategy & Risk Management Committee were in operation as at

December 31 2017. The Board worked through these committees, along with ad-hoc committees. The Committees in turn, were

guided by terms of reference and where required referred to Executive Management in the discharge of its duties. The terms of

reference of the Committees are summarized below, in addition to the record of directors’ attendance:

Finance & General Purposes Committee: Review of financial statements, and monitoring of financial plans.

Mr. Abi Ayida

Chief Musa Danjuma

Establishment Remuneration & Governance Committee: Review of the management development and succession plans,

as well as the assessment of the effectiveness of the Board’s governance practices. 

Mr. Nelson Nweke

Mr. Kunle Olowokande 

Mr. Raj Mangtani

Engr. Patrick Buruche

Mr. Abi Ayida 

Mr. Wole Abegunde

Mr. Nelson Nweke

Mr. Kunle Olowokande 

Engr. Patrick Buruche 

Mr. Sanjay Datwani

Mr. Peter Folikwe

Engr. Patrick Buruche

Mr. Wole Abegunde

Mr. Abi Ayida

Mr. Kunle Olowokande

Mr. Nelson Nweke

Mr. Raj Mangtani 

Chief Musa Danjuma

Mr. Wole Abegunde

Strategy & Risk Management Committee: Monitoring of the corporate strategy and review of the risk management policy.

Member

Chief Musa Danjuma

Mr. Raj Mangtani

Mr. Taiwo Afinju

Chief Musa Danjuma

Mr. Nelson Nweke

Mr. Kunle Olowokande 

Mr. Sanjay Datwani

Mr. Peter Folikwe

In accordance with the provisions of section 359(4) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of

Nigeria, 2004, the Audit Committee comprises of three non-executive directors and three shareholders’ representatives. The

Committee, in the conduct of its affairs as stipulated in Section 359 (6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws

of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004, reviews the overall risk management and control systems, as well as financial reporting

procedures and standards of business conduct of the Company. In the performance of their duties, the members have direct access

to both the Internal Auditors and the External Auditors. The Committee met 5 times in 2017 as indicated below. 

Member

Mr. Chibuzor Eke

Mrs. Mary Joke Shofolahan
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8 Donations and Gifts

S/N Details AMOUNT 

1.   100,000

2.   40,160

3.   81,651

4.   36,000

5.   60,000

6.   500,000

7.   101,653

8.   500,000

Total spent 1,419,464

9 Quality Policy & Innovation

10 Post Balance Sheet Events

11 Risk Management & Internal Controls

11.1 Maximise the benefit from new opportunities, challenges and initiatives;

11.2 Avoid damage to our reputation;

11.3 Take appropriate risk for return while improving shareholders’ value;

11.4 Prioritise effectively between different risks; and 

11.5 Demonstrate good corporate governance by managing our risks effectively.

12 Safety and Environmental Policy

12.1 Ensuring that plant & equipment are adequately maintained to prevent accidents;

12.2 Using up to date methods to control hazards inherent in our operations;

12.3 Providing personal protective equipment and enforcing its usage;

12.4 Ensuring that safe work procedures are followed;

12.5 Ensuring that jobs are awarded only to contractors with laudable safety performances;

12.6 Ensuring that the working environment is clean, tidy and conducive;

12.7

12.8 Continuously training employees to create safety consciousness.

13 Sustainability

13.1 The use of modern technology to reduce environmental pollution;

13.2 Conservation of resources in a cost effective manner;

13.3 The proper disposal or recycle of waste; and

13.4

In compliance with Section 38 (2) of the Companies & Allied Matters Act CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004, the

Company did not make any donations to any political party, political association or for any political purpose in the year under

review. Donations made during the year are stated below: (2016: N934,000)

RECIPIENT

Teenager Camp Educational tour of the Company

Yaba Baptist Bible school Donation of a plaque for the best student

Boys’ Brigade Nigeria Donation towards investiture for Sir Sunny Nwosu 

Child Friendly Award Donation for a child safety initiative

Development Africa Donation of paint to Taraba Maternity Hospital

Sofunix International School Donation of paint

There is an effective internal audit function, in addition to which the risk management control and compliance system operates

efficiently. An Enterprise Risk Management Framework has been approved by the Board and implemented by Management. The

objectives of the Company’s risk management policy are:

The safety of our employees is a priority. The Company has taken every precaution to provide a safe workplace and there is a zero

tolerance policy for workplace violence. Our operations and procedures are regularly certified by both state and federal regulatory

agencies. Accidents are investigated, and corrective actions put in place to forestall future occurrences. The Company has

developed a number of policies to promote safety and minimize accidents in the workplace, and it ensures the safety of its staff and

visitors through various means including:

Implementing an effective emergency management program so as to minimize adverse impact on human and the

environment, in case of emergencies; and 

Part of the fulfilment of our environmental friendliness practice is to conduct a periodic environmental audit to monitor the

significant environmental aspects of our operations and put in place controls that will minimize or eliminate their adverse impact

on the environment. The Company also complies with all environmental laws and strives to minimize environmental impact

associated with our activities. In addition, workplace accidents nor fatalities recorded. In its quest to apply the most

environmentally beneficial options, the Company carried out the following:

The assessment of the adverse impact of our raw materials or new products on both humans and the environment.

Girl Art Foundation Donation of paint 

Little Saints Orphanage and Heritage Orphanage Home Donation of food items/ provisions

Berger Paints remains a forward-looking organization, which places premium on quality products. The Company is committed to

improving quality through the use of identified processes, which are constantly monitored to meet approved international and local

standards. These carefully monitored processes make it imperative that only high quality paints are produced and marketed by the

Company. In recognition of the above, the Company has been awarded the latest International Standard Certification (ISO 9001-

2008).

There are no significant post balance sheet events which have not been provided for or disclosed in these financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
In accordance with the provisions of Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters
Act, CAP. C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 we, the members of the Audit
Committee of Berger Paints Nigeria PIc., having carried out our statutory functions under
the Act, hereby report that:

(a) The accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with legal
requirements and agreed ethical practices;

(b) The scope and planning of both the external and internal audit programs for the year
ended 31 December, 2017 are satisfactory and reinforce the Company's internal
control system.

(c) Having reviewed the External Auditors' findings and recommendations on
management matters, we are satisfied with management response thereon.

Finally, we acknowledge the cooperation of Management in the conduct of these duties.

Members of the Audit Committee are:
• Mr. Chibuzor E. Eke - Shareholders' Representative/Chairman
• Mr. Taiwo A. Afinju - Shareholders' Representative
• Mrs. Mary Joke Shofolahan . Shareholders' Representative
• ChiefMusa Danjuma - Non-Executive Director
• Mr. Nelson Nweke - Non-Executive Director
• Mr. Kunle Olowokande - Non-Executive Director

The Company Secretary, Oluseun Oluwole is the Secretary to the Committee.

Dated March 22, 2018-&V.
Mr. Chibuzor Eke
FRC/2013/NIMN/00000004670
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2017

In thousands of naira Note 2017 2016

Revenue 4 3,092,445 2,602,824

Cost of sales 7(b)

Gross profit 1,273,077 1,111,631

Other income 5 183,441 235,466

Selling and distribution expenses 7(b)

Administrative expenses 7(b)

Operating profit 339,524 278,317

Finance income 6 29,888 28,365

Finance costs 6

Net finance costs

Profit before taxation 7 339,456 271,770

Income tax expense 9(a)

Profit for the year 246,276 224,007

Other comprehensive income

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

14 27,903 15,018

Related tax 9(b)

           18,974 10,212

Other comprehensive income            18,974 10,212

Total comprehensive income 265,250 234,219

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share (kobo) 10 85 77

(1,491,193)

(347,892)

(720,888)

           (34,912)

(47,763)

(6,547)

(1,819,368)

(216,774)

(900,220)

           (29,956)

(93,180)

(68)

Available-for-sale financial assets (net change in fair value)

The accompanying notes  on pages 17 to 61 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(8,929) (4,806)
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017

In thousands of naira

Note

Share 

capital

Share 

premium

Fair value 

reserve

Retained 

earnings Total equity

Balance at 1 January 2017         144,912           635,074           64,400          1,759,795          2,604,181 

Comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year                  -                      -   -                  -               246,276             246,276 

Other comprehensive income 9(b)                  -                      -             18,974                       -                 18,974 

Total comprehensive income for the year                  -                      -             18,974             246,276             265,250 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity

Fair value reserve reclassified to profit or loss 20(c)                  -                      -                         -   

Dividends 25                  -                      -                    -   

Total transactions with owners                  -                      -   

Balance at 31 December 2017         144,912           635,074                  -            1,861,159          2,641,145 

Balance at 1 January 2016         144,912           635,074           54,188          1,753,156          2,587,330 

Comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year                  -                      -   -                  -               224,007             224,007 

Other comprehensive income 9(b)                  -                      -             10,212                       -                 10,212 

Total comprehensive income for the year                  -                      -             10,212             224,007             234,219 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity

Dividends 25                  -                      -                    -   

Total transactions with owners                  -                      -                    -   

Balance at 31 December 2016         144,912           635,074           64,400          1,759,795          2,604,181 

Attributable to equity owners of the company

The accompanying notes  on pages 17 to 61 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(144,912)            

            (144,912)

(217,368)            

            (217,368)

(217,368)           

           (217,368)

         (83,374)

         (83,374)

             (83,374)

(144,912)           

           (228,286)
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2017

In thousands of naira

Note 2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 246,276 224,007

Adjustments for:

- Depreciation 11(a) &13 106,787 106,643

- Amortisation 12 6,883                  -   

- Finance income 6

- Finance costs 6          29,956 34,912

 - Fair value reserve reclassified to profit or loss                  -   

- Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 7(a)

- Tax expense 9(a)          93,180 47,763

355,151 223,989

Changes in:

- Inventories

- Trade and other receivables 16(c) 211,020

- Deposit for imports 70,995

- Prepayments and advances 18(a) 49,909 667,564

- Trade and other payables 21(d) 42,072

- Deferred income 46,188 31,408

Cash generated from operating activities 502,981 812,500

WHT credit notes utilised 9(d)

Income taxes paid 9(d)

Net cash generated from operating activities 326,215 758,941

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 11(g) 

Acquisition of intangible assets 12                  -   

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets 14 215,040                  -   

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 14,614 252,154

Interest income on bank deposits 6 24,507 26,975

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from loans and borrowings 23(b) 349,748                  -   

Repayment of borrowings 23(b)                  -   

Interest accrued 23(b) 33,976                  -   

Dividends paid 25

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 177,155

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 268,798

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 486,949 600,741

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 19 755,747 486,949

(113,792)

(21,567)

(989,378)

(710,249)

      (162,484)

(162,484)

(28,365)

(160,971)

(109,949)

(113,579)

(31,992)

The accompanying notes  on pages 17 to 61 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(29,888)

(83,374)

(14,669)

(5,516)

(29,411)

(124,360)

(10,482)

(166,284)

(427,222)

(61,511)

(57,332)

      (149,237)

(234,572)
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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14 Available-for-sale financial assets 44 31 Subsequent events 59

15 Inventories 45 32 Operating segments 60

16 Trade and other receivables 45

17 Deposit for imports 46
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017

1 Reporting Entity

2 Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

(b) Basis of measurement

-

-

(c) Functional and presentation currency

(d) Use of estimates and judgment

Note 3(Q) and 28 

Note 3(D),(F),11 and 12  

Note 3(L) and 4   

Note 2(e) and 27

Note 3(G) and 16

Note 23(a)  

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about critical judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have most significant effects on amounts recognised

in the financial statements is included in the following notes;

Leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease

Determination of the useful life of leasehold land

Recognition and measurement of revenue from 

Berger Paints Nigeria Plc ("the Company") was incorporated in Nigeria as a private limited liability company in 1959

and was converted to a public liability company in 1973. Its registered office address is at 102, Oba Akran Avenue, Ikeja

Industrial Estate, Ikeja, Lagos. The Company is listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange.

The principal activities of the Company continue to be the manufacturing, sale and distribution of paints and allied

products throughout the country and rent of investment property. 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria,

2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011. The financial statements were authorised for issue

by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2017.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following: non-derivative

financial instruments which are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

These financial statements are presented in Naira, which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial

information presented in Naira has been rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

In the preparation of these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that

affect the application of the Company's accounting policy and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses. Actual result may differ from these estimates. 

Determination of fair values

Impairment test: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts,

Determination of repayment cashflows in respect of the investment

property development financing arrangement.

Non-derivative financial instruments: Initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost.

Inventories: Lower of cost and net realisable value.

The methods used to measure fair value are discussed further in Note 2(e).
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(e) Measurement of fair values

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 – 

Level 3 – 

3 Significant Accounting Policies

A. Foreign currency transactions 20 O. Income tax 29

B. Financial instruments 20 P. Earnings per share 29

C. Capital and other reserves 21 Q. Leases 30

D. Property, plant and equipment 21 R. Statement of cashflows 30

E. Intangible assets 23 S. Operating segment 31

F. Investment property 23 T. Dividends 31

G. Impairment 24 U. Prepayments and advances 31

H. 25 V. Deposit for imports 31

I. Provisions 26 W. Investment in subsidiary 31

J. Employee benefits 26 X. Related parties 32

K. Inventory 27 Y. New standards and interpretations

L. Revenue 27 not yet adopted 32

M. 28 Z. 33

N. Government grants 28

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair values, for both

financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation

techniques as follows:

inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable

for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.

as derived from prices).

inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market

data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different levels of the fair

value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value

hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period

during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 27 – Financial

instruments- Fair values and financial risk management.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial

statements. Set out below is an index of the significant accounting policies, the details of which are available on the

pages that follow.

Finance income and finance costs

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

New currently effective 

requirements
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A. Foreign currency transactions

B. Financial instruments

i. Non-derivative financial assets

ii. Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, for which the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the statement of financial position date, are classified as non-current liabilities.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to naira at the exchange rate at the

reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into

functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured

based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign

currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

The Company has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: Trade & other payables, and loans and

borrowings. Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction

costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Subsequent to initial recognition, non-derivative financial assets are measured as described below:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active

market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent

to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less

any impairment losses. Loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables and cash & cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash balances with banks, and short term investments with

maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in

value, net of any overdraft balances.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets are non-derivatives financial assets that are either designated as AFS or are

not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.                                           

Listed equities held by the Company that are traded in an active market are classified as AFS. These assets are

initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,

they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses, are recognised in OCI and

accumulated in the fair value reserve. When these assets are derecognised, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is

reclassified to profit or loss.

The Company initially recognises loans and receivables on the date that they are originated. All other financial

assets are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it

transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially

all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial

assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated and recorded in Naira at the actual exchange rates at the

dates of the transactions. 
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C. Capital and other reserves

i. Share capital

ii. Share premium

iii. Retained earnings

iv. Fair value reserve

D. Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

The Company has only one class of shares, ordinary shares. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. When new

shares are issued, they are recorded in share capital at their par value. The excess of the issue price over the par

value is recorded as share premium. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Holders of these shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share

at general meetings of the Company. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are

recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

When the company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount

or value of the premium on those shares is transferred to the share premium account. Any transaction costs

associated with the share issues are deducted from share premium account, net of any related income tax benefits.

The use of the share premium account is governed by S.120 (3) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP

C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004,

Retained earnings represents the Company’s accumulated earnings since its inception, less any distributions to

shareholders, and net of any prior period adjustments. A negative amount of retained earnings is reported as

accumulated deficit.

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in available-for-sale financial assets until the assets are

derecognised or impaired.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic

benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of construction

recognised includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets

to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site

on which they are located, and borrowing costs on qualifying assets. Items of property, plant and equipment under

construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

If significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for

as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and

only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the

asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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ii. Subsequent cost

iii. Derecognition

iv. Depreciation

The estimated useful lifes for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

•  Leasehold land – Unlimited

•  Buildings – 20 years

•  Plants and machinery

- Fixed plant – 12 years

- Movable plant – 7 years

- Generators – 5 years

•  Motor vehicles

- Trucks – 6 years

- Cars – 4 years

•  Furniture and fittings – 8 years

•  Computer equipment – 2 years

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the

item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its

cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day

servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for

cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if

appropriate. 

The attributable cost of each asset is transferred to the relevant asset category immediately the asset is available for

use and depreciated accordingly.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an

item of property, plant and equipment which reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic

benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives

unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Capital work-in-

progress is not depreciated.

Gains and losses on derecognition or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by

comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are

recognised net in profit or loss in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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E. Intangible assets

F. Investment property

i. Recognition and measurement

ii. Subsequent expenditure

iii. Depreciation

•  Buildings – 20 years

•  Leasehold land – unlimited

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Such cost does not include start-up

costs, abnormal waste, or initial operating losses incurred before the investment property achieves the planned level

of occupancy.

The cost model is applied in accounting for investment property. The investment property is recorded at cost less any

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of replacing a part of an item of investment property is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is

probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be

measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing

of investment property are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for

cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of the

investment property which reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in

the asset.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if

appropriate.

Except for leasehold land, the estimated useful lifes for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

An investment property is either land or a building or part of a building held by the Company to earn rentals or for

capital appreciation or both.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets with finite lives are

amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the

intangible assets may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with

finite usueful life are reviewed at the end of each year, changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of

consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the assets are considered to modify the amortisation period or

method, as appropriate, and are treated as charges in accounting estimates. 

Purchased software with finite usueful lives are recognised as assets if there is sufficient certainty that future

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line

method over three (3) years.

The amortisation expense of tangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the profit or loss as the expense

category that is consistent with the function of the intangible assets. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an

intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and are recognised in the profit or loss when asset is derecognised.
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iv. Transfers

-

-

-

-

G. Impairment

i. Financial assets

commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property;

commencement of development with a view to sale, for a transfer from investment property to inventories;

end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property; or

Transfers to, or from, investment property are made when there is a change in use, evidenced by:

Transfers to, or from, investment property does not change the carrying amount of the property transferred, and they

do not change the cost of the property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

commencement of an operating lease to another party, for a transfer from inventories to investment property.

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine

whether there is objective evidence that is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that

a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the

estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of

an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or

issuer will enter bankruptcy, or the disappearance of an active market for a security. In addition, for an investment in

an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of

impairment.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific asset and collective level. All

individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables

found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not

yet identified. Receivables that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping

together receivables with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment the Company uses historical trends of the probability of default, timing of

recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current economic

and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between

its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original

effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against

receivables. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a

subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed

through profit or loss.
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ii. Non-financial assets

H. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable

amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are

allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest

group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of

other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit, or CGU”).

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less

costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

asset. 

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company,

or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot

be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognised as liabilities in the statement of financial position. If the

likelihood of an outflow of resources is remote, the possible obligation is neither a provision nor a contingent liability

and no disclosure is made.

For equity instrument classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the

security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment. Where such evidence exists, the

cumulative gain or loss that has been previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and transferred

to equity is removed from equity (through OCI) and recognised in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment of equity

instruments are not recognised in the profit or loss. Subsequent increases in the fair value of equity instruments after

impairment are recognised directly in OCI. 

For debt instruments classified as available for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as all other

financial assets above. Reversals of impairment of debt instruments are recognised in the profit or loss.
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I. Provisions

J. Employee benefits

i. Defined contribution plan

ii. Short-term employee benefits

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan (pension fund) under which the Company pays fixed

contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

In line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014, the Company has instituted a defined contribution

pension scheme for all employees. The Company and its employees contribute a minimum of 10% and 8% of the

employees annual basic salary, housing and transport allowances respectively to the scheme. Employee contributions

to the scheme are funded through payroll deductions while the Company’s contributions are charged to profit and

loss.

On 1 January 2016, the Company increased the employer contributions to the scheme to 15% of employee's annual

basic salary, housing and transport allowances.

A provision is recognised, if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that

can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is

recognised as finance cost in profit or loss.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive

obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be

estimated reliably.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may

never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent

asset and its recognition is appropriate.

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are assessed

continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually

certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognised in the financial

statements of the period in which the change occurs. If an inflow of economic benefits has become probable, an entity

discloses the contingent asset.

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related

service is provided in profit or loss.
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iii. Termination benefits

K. Inventories

–

–

L. Revenue

i. Sale of goods

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of

conversion and selling expenses.

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities represents sale of paints and allied products and

is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of value added tax, sales returns, trade

discounts and volume rebates. 

Revenue is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer,

recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably,

there is no continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if the Company has made an offer of

voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated

reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting period, then they are discounted to their

present value.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory includes expenditure

incurred in acquiring the inventory, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their

existing location and condition. The basis of costing is as follows:

Raw materials, non-returnable packaging

materials and consumable spare parts 

purchase cost on a weighted average basis including

transportation and applicable clearing charges.

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company is committed demonstrably, without realistic

possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal retirement

date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. 

If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is

recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognised.

weighted average cost of direct materials and labour plus

a reasonable proportion of manufacturing overheads

based on normal levels of activity.

Finished products and products-in-process
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ii. Rendering of service - supply and apply services contract

iii. Investment property rental income

M. Finance income and finance costs

N. Government grant

Rental income from investment property is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease.

Rental income from other properties are recognised as other income.

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, dividend income and reclassification of net gains

previously recognised in OCI. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest

method. Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is

established. 

Finance costs comprise interest expense on financial liabilities and impairment losses recognised on financial assets

(other than trade receivables). Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities are reported on a net basis as either finance

income or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position. 

Supply and apply services contract revenue results from rendering painting services to customers. These services are

rendered based on specific negotiated contracts with the customers.

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work, claims and

incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably.

If the outcome of a service can be estimated reliably, then contract revenue is recognised in profit or loss in

proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion is assessed by recalculating the

proportion that costs incurred to date bears to the estimated total costs of the service. Otherwise, contract revenue is

recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. 

Contract expenses are recognised as incurred unless they create an asset related to future contract activity. An

expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the

conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company

recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government

grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets

are recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic

and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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O. Income tax

P. Earnings per share

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss account except to the extent that it relates to a transaction that is recognised

directly in equity. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will

be available against which the amount will be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,

based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to

income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to

settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by 

dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held (if any). Diluted EPS is determined by

adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding, adjusted for own shares held (if any), for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss

except to the extent that they relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other

comprehensive income.

Current tax includes company income tax, tertiary education tax and capital gains tax. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates statutorily

enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of

giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the

difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.
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Q. Leases

i. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

ii. Leased assets

iii. Lease payments

R. Statement of cashflows

The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method. Changes in statement of financial position items that

have not resulted in cash flows such as translation differences, and other non-cash items, have been eliminated for the

purpose of preparing the statement. Dividend paid to ordinary shareholders are included in financing activities while

finance income received is included in investing activities.

At inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or contains a lease.

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, the Company separates payments and other

consideration required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their

relative fair values. If the Company concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments

reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset;

subsequently, the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised

using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Assets held by the Company under leases which transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and rewards of

ownership are classified as finance leases. On initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to

the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition,

the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Assets held under other

leases are classified as operating leases and are not recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the

lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the

lease. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the

reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to

produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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S. Operating Segment

T. Dividends

U. Prepayments and advances

V. Deposit for imports

W. Investment in subsidiary

An operating segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that earns revenue and incurs expenditure from

providing related products or services (business segment), or providing products or services within a particular economic

environment (geographical segment), and which is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other

segments.

Prepayments and advances are non-financial assets which result when payments are made in advance of the receipt of

goods or services. They are recognised when the Company expects to receive future economic benefits equivalent to the

value of the prepayment. The receipt or consumption of the goods or services results in a reduction in the prepayment

and a corresponding increase in expenses (assets) for that reporting period.

Deposit for imports are non-financial assets which result when letters of credit are opened with the bank for the

importation of raw materials and plant and machinery. They are recognised when the Company expects to receive future

economic benefits equivalent to the value of the deposit made. 

The Company’s primary format for segment reporting is based on business segments. The business segments are

determined by management based on the Company’s internal reporting structure.

All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the Management Committee, which is considered to

be the chief operating decision maker for the Company, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment

and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Company's Management Committee include items directly attributable to a

segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets,

head office expenses and tax assets and liabilities.

Dividend payable is recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared and the shareholders right to

receive payment has been established.

Dividends which remained unclaimed for a period exceeding twelve (12) years from the date of declaration and which

are no longer actionable by shareholders in accordance with section 385 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of

Nigeria are written back to retained earnings.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated

impairment losses in the Company’s statement of financial position. Where the recoverable amount of the investment is

less than the carrying amount, an impairment is recognised in profit or loss. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries,

the difference between disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the investments are recognised in profit or loss. 
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X. Related parties

Y. New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Standards issued but not yet effective

– IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Related parties include the Company's shareholders, directors, their close family members and any employee who is able

to exert a significant influence on the operating policies of the Company. Key management personnel are also regarded

as related parties. Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,

directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or

otherwise) of that entity.

Related parties transactions of similar nature are disclosed in aggregate except where separate disclosure is necessary for

understanding of the effects of the related party transactions on the financial statements of the entity.

Classification and Measurement – Financial Assets

IFRS 9 contains a new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model

in which assets are managed and the ‘solely payment of principal and interest’ cash flow characteristics of the

financial assets.

IFRS 9 includes three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, FVOCI and

FVTPL. It eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.

The Company is not significantly exposed to financial instruments and most of its financial assets will be classified

as measured at amortised on the date of initial application. Therefore, the Company does not anticipate any

significant financial impact on its equity arising from the adoption of the classification and measurement

requirements of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018.

Impairment

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with a forward-looking ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument. Credit

losses are the present value of expected cash shortfalls i.e. the present value of the difference between the cash flows

due to the entity in under the contract; and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive. IFRS 9 does not

prescribe a single method to measure ECLs. Rather, it acknowledges that the methods used to measure ECLs may

vary based on the type of financial asset and the information available. The standard allows the use of practical

expedients when estimating ECLs, to the extent that its measurement reflect an unbiased and probability weighted

amount, time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or

effort. The standard contains a simplified approach that uses provision matrix to measure lifetime ECLs for trade

receivables.

Changes in accounting policies resulting from IFRS 9 will be applied retrospectively as at 1 January 2018, but with

no restatement of comparative information for prior years. Consequently, the Company will recognise any difference

between the carrying amount of financial instruments under IAS 39 and the carrying amount under IFRS 9 in the

opening retained earnings (or other equity components) of the accounting period including the date of initial

application.

The total estimated adjustment (net of tax) to the opening equity at the date of initial application is not material.

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which replaces IAS 39 Financial

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company will apply IFRS 9 as issued in July 2014 initially on 1 January

2018. 
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– IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contract with Customers

– IFRS 16 - Leases

a.

b.

Z. Other standards

- Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle - Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28

- Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)

- IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

- IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

This standard will replace IAS 17 and sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and

disclosure of leases. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and

disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (‘lessee’) and the supplier (‘lessor’). IFRS 16

eliminates the classification of leases as operating leases or finance leases as required by IAS 17 and introduces a

single lessee accounting model. Applying that model, a lessee is required to recognise:

This standard combines, enhances and replaces specific guidance on recognising revenue with a single standard.

It defines a new five-step model to recognise revenue from customer contracts. The Company has undertaken a

review of the main types of commercial arrangements used with customers under this model and has tentatively

concluded that the application of IFRS 15 will not have a material impact on the financial position. The effect

identified so far is on a small proportion of revenue relating to supply and apply services (less than 2% of annual

revenue), which is expected to be recognised at a point in time under the new standard. This is not expected to have

a material impact on the profit or loss and financial position of the Company.

This standard is mandatory for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2018. The Company is planning to

apply the standard retrospectively.

The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's

financial statements:

The Company is not expected to be significantly impacted by the single lessee accounting model of IFRS 16.

assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying

asset is of low value; and

depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017

4 Revenue 2017 2016

Revenue for the year comprises:

In thousands of naira

(a) Sale of paints and allied products 2,994,490 2,493,395

Contract revenue 49,500 52,476

Investment property rental income       48,454 56,953
3,092,444 2,602,824

5 Other income

(a) Other income comprises:

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Sale of Scrap 10,551 9,567

Rental income on property subleases (Note 5(a(i))) 45,369 26,916

Profit from disposal of property, plant and equipment 14,669 160,971

Insurance claims received 1,356 3,725

Income from new dealership registration (Note 5(a(ii))) 27,873 30,274

Gain from sale of available for sale financial assets (Note 20(c)) 83,374                  -   

Sale of diesel oil 249 4,013
183,441 235,466

(i)

(ii)

6 Finance income and finance cost

Recognized in profit or loss:

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Interest income on bank deposits 24,507 26,975

Exchange gain         5,381 1,390

Finance income 29,888 28,365

Interest expense on short term borrowings  -

Exchange loss  -

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised costs.

Finance cost

Net finance costs recognised in profit or loss

      (29,956)          (34,912)

             (68)            (6,547)

Nigeria is the Company's primary geographical segment as all sales in the current and prior year were

made in the country.

(12,095)

(17,861) (34,246)

(666)

This represents income earned from leases of an insignificant portion of the Company's building properties

to third parties.

This represents a one-off fee usually received from newly registered dealers/distributors.
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7 Profit before tax

(a) Profit before tax is stated after charging/(crediting):

In thousands of naira Note 2017 2016

Directors' emoluments 8(d) 45,733 28,319

Depreciation 11(a) &13         106,788 106,643

Amortisation 12             6,883                  -   

Personnel expenses 8(a) 588,231 566,695

Auditors' remuneration 17,500 16,275

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(b) Analysis of expenses by nature

In thousands of naira

2017 2016

Directors emoluments 45,733 28,319

Personnel expenses (Note 8(a)) 588,231 566,695

Training expenses 14,455 8,750

Repairs and maintenance 88,755 73,934

Office and corporate expenses 33,802 36,307

Rates 15,876 2,813

Utilities 58,277 34,399

Insurance 8,324 6,206

Travel, transport and accommodation 115,513 95,980

Rent expenses 4,318 7,290

Subscriptions and donations 7,783 7,168

Depreciation (Note 11(a)) 106,788 106,643

Amortisation (Note 12) 6,883                  -   

Printing and stationery 7,723 6,601

Legal and professional services fees 42,525 104,799

Auditors' remuneration 17,500 16,275

(Write-back)/Impairment loss on trade recievables (Note 16(b)) 6,243

Bank charges 6,403 7,524

Advertisement and publicity 69,115 101,276

Distribution and selling expenses 147,659 119,082

Raw materials and consumables 1,526,417 1,208,543

Supply and apply services contract expenses 24,900 15,126
2,936,362 2,559,973

Summarised as follows:

Cost of sales 1,819,368 1,491,193

Selling and distribution expenses 216,774 347,892

Administrative expenses 900,220 720,888

Total cost 2,936,362 2,559,973

(618)

(14,669) (160,971)
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8 Personnel expenses

(a) Personnel expenses, excluding remuneration of executive director during the year comprises:

In thousands of naira

2017 2016

Salaries, wages and allowances 549,814 522,371

Employer contribution to compulsory pension fund scheme 38,417 44,324
588,231 566,695

(b)

2017 2016

N N  Number  Number 

500,001 1,000,000                      30                  49 

1,000,001 1,500,001                      86                  92 

1,500,001 2,000,001                      22                  26 

2,000,001 3,000,001                      12                  11 

3,000,001 above                  15                  16 
165 194

(c)

2017 2016

 Number  Number 

Production 40 46

Sales and marketing 35 59

Finance 16 16

Administration 11 10

Maintenance 10 10

Corporate 7 7

Procurement 4 4

Distribution 14 13

Information Technology 4 3

Technical 13 14

Raw materials 11 12
165 194

Number of employees of the Company as at year end, whose duties were wholly or mainly

discharged in Nigeria, received annual remuneration (excluding pension contributions and certain

benefits) in the following ranges:

The number of persons employed as at period end are:

   -

   -

   -

   -

 and 
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(d)

In thousands of naira

2017 2016

Fees paid to non-executive directors           28,895 16,945

Salaries 16,838 11,374
          45,733 28,319

The directors’ remuneration shown above includes:

In thousands of naira

2017 2016

Chairman             6,700 1,623

Highest paid director           16,838 11,374

2017 2016

N N  Number  Number 

            Nil 1,000,000                        3                    3 

1,000,001                       8,000,000                        5                    5 
8 8

-

-

Other directors received emoluments in the following ranges:

Remuneration (excluding pension contributions and certain benefits) paid to directors of the

Company and charged to the profit or loss are as follows:
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9 Taxation

(a)

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Current tax expense:

Company income tax 53,973 42,724

Capital gains tax 25 13,500

Tertiary education tax 5,684 4,322

59,682 60,546

WHT credit notes previously impaired, now recovered             -   

Charge for the year 32,437 60,546

Deferred tax charge/(credit):

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note 9 (e)) 60,743

60,743

Income tax expense 93,180 47,763

(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income:

In thousands of naira

Before Tax Net of Before Tax Net of
tax expense tax tax expense tax

   27,903    18,974 15,018 10,212

   27,903    18,974 15,018 10,212

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

In thousands of naira

2017 2016

% %

Profit for the year   246,276   224,007 

Taxation     93,180     47,763 

Profit before tax   339,456   271,770 

          30   101,837            30     81,531 

Tertiary education tax @ 2%             2       6,789              2       5,435 

 - Non-deductible expenses             2       6,797              6     16,429 

 - Tax exempt income            -               -             (25)

 - Tax incentives             (0)

            -               -   

 - Other tax differences       5,994             -               -   

 - Effect of capital gains tax            -                8              5     13,500 

Tax expense           27     93,180            18     47,763 

The tax charge for the year has been computed after adjusting for certain items of expenditure and income

which are not deductible or chargeable for tax purposes, and comprises:

(27,245)

(12,783)

(4,806)(8,929)

     (8,929)       (4,806)

2017 2016

Income tax using the Company’s domestic rate of 30% 

Fair value change on available-

for-sale financial assets

 - WHT notes recovered

            (0)

            (8)

             2 

(12,783)

      (1,000)

    (27,245)

    (68,403)

         (729)
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(d) The movement on the tax payable account during the year was as follows:

In thousands of naira

i. Current tax liabilities

2017 2016

Balance, beginning of the year 271,009 264,022

Current year charge 59,682 60,546

Cash payments

WHT credit notes previously impaired, now recovered             -   

WHT credit notes utilised

126,680 271,009

ii. WHT credit notes 2017 2016

Balance, beginning of the year     24,535     44,393 

Additions     10,129     12,134 

WHT credit notes utilised

24,182 24,535

Balance, end of the year 102,498 246,474

(10,482)

(166,284)

(27,245)

(10,482) (31,992)

(31,992)

(21,567)
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(e) Movement in deferred tax balances

In thousands of naira

Recognised

Recognised in Other

Balance at 1 in profit comprehensive Deferred tax Deferred tax

January or loss income Net assets liabilities

2017

Property, plant and equipment        126,838         58,249                      -         185,087                 -         185,087 

Allowance on trade receivables           1,545                      -                   -   

Provision for gratuity (discontinued)         49,661                      -                   -   

Provision for slow moving inventories                  -                        -                   -   

Unrealized exchange losses/(gains)                444                      -                   -   

Available-for-sale financial assets (net change in fair value)          20,674                8,929                 -                   -                   -   

Net tax (assets)/ liabilities          67,675         60,743                8,929       137,347       185,087 

2016

Property, plant and equipment        152,912                      -         126,838                 -         126,838 

Allowance on trade receivables           5,894                      -                   -   

Provision for gratuity (discontinued)           6,953                      -                   -                   -   

Unrealized exchange losses/(gains)                  -                444                      -                444                 -   

Available-for-sale financial assets (net change in fair value)          15,868                 -                  4,806         20,674                 -           20,674 

Net tax (assets)/ liabilities          75,652                4,806         67,675       147,512 

10 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is the same as diluted earnings per share.

Balance at 31 December

          (2,730)

        (16,516)

        (26,345)

         (34,843)

         (58,285)         (52,391)

        (27,890)

        (16,516)

         (27,890)

         (52,391)

          (2,593)

Basic earnings per share of 85 kobo (2016: 77 kobo) is based on the profit for the year of ₦246 million (2016: ₦224 million) and on 289,823,447 (2016: 289,823,447)

ordinary shares of 50 kobo each, being the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

        (29,603)

        (26,074)

          (2,149)           (2,149)

        (27,446)

        (12,783)         (79,837)

        (47,740)

        (26,345)

          (2,730)

        (16,516)

        (52,391)
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11 Property Plant and equipment

(a) The movement on these accounts was as follows:

In thousands of naira

 Leasedhold 

Land  Buildings 

 Plants and 

Machinery 

 Furniture 

and fittings 

 Motor 

Vehicles 

 Computer 

Equipment 

 Capital 

work-in 

progress  TOTAL 

 N'000  N'000  N'000  N'000  N'000  N'000  N'000  N'000 

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2016         496,650     372,740       349,807          52,391    279,825        134,261        189,586     1,875,260 

Additions                  -                -             6,070                 84      14,760            3,996        971,868        996,778 

Transfers                  -                -           14,239                 -                -                   -                   -   

Disposals                -                   -                   -                   -   

Balance at 31 December 2016         402,650     343,002       370,116          52,475    288,330        138,257     1,147,215     2,742,045 

Balance at 1 January 2017         402,650     343,002       370,116          52,475    288,330        138,257     1,147,215     2,742,045 

Additions                  -                -           11,434            2,943      48,000          21,895        342,950        427,222 

Disposals                  -                -                   -   

Balance at 31 December 2017         402,650     343,002       378,904          54,828    290,960        152,252     1,490,165     3,112,761 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2016           97,983     184,345       186,780          39,682    190,147        129,997                 -          828,934 

Charge for the year                  -         18,511         21,563            3,245      37,831            3,928                 -            85,078 

Disposals                -                   -                   -                   -   

Balance at 31 December 2016           79,183     186,631       208,343          42,927    224,193        133,925                 -          875,202 

Balance at 1 January 2017           79,183     186,631       208,343          42,927    224,193        133,925                 -          875,202 

Charge for the year                  -         17,103         10,058            2,962      47,980            7,387                 -            85,490 

Disposals                 -   

Balance at 31 December 2017           79,183     203,734       215,755          45,299    226,858        133,412                 -          904,241 

Carrying amounts

At 31 December 2016         323,467     156,371       161,773            9,548      64,137            4,332     1,147,215     1,866,843 

At 31 December 2017         323,467     139,268       163,149            9,529      64,102          18,840     1,490,165     2,208,523 

          (18,800)      (16,225)        (3,785)         (38,810)

         (2,646)              (590)      (45,315)           (7,900)         (56,451)

          (7,900)         (56,506)

       (6,255)

        (14,239)

      (129,993)          (94,000)      (29,738)

         (2,646)              (590)      (45,370)
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(b) Assets pledged as security

No asset of the company was pledged as security for loan as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil)

(c) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

(d) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure commitments for the year 2017 authorised by the Board of Directors comprise:

In thousands on naira 2017 2016

Approved and contracted        341,778          26,090 

Approved but not contracted          85,444        149,844 
       427,222        175,934 

(e) Property, plant and equipment under construction

Expenditure on capital work in progress as at 31 December 2017 is analysed as follows:

In thousands on naira 2017 2016

Plant and machinery     1,036,934        714,060 

Buildings        453,231        433,155 
    1,490,165     1,147,215 

(f) Assets held on finance lease

No impairment loss is recognised for the year (2016: Nil).

The leasehold land is held under finance lease arrangements for a minimum lease term of 99 years. The lease amounts were fully paid at the inception of 

the lease. 

The classification of the lease of land as a finance lease is on the basis that the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership of the land to the Company.

Included in this amount of capital work in progress are capitalised borrowing costs of N54.9 million (2016: Nil), at a capitalisation rate of 100%.

42



Berger Paints Nigeria Plc

Annual Report

31 December 2017

(g) Additions in statement of cash flows

In thousands on naira 2017 2016

Additions (Note 11(a))        427,222        996,778 

Accrued additions to PPE (Note 21(d))                 -   

       427,222        989,378 

12 Intangible assets

 Computer 

Software 

Cost  N'000 

Balance at 1 January 2017                 -   

Additions for the year          61,511 

Balance at 31 December 2017          61,511 

Accumulated amortisation

Balance at 1 January 2017                 -   

Charge for the year           6,883 

Transfers                 -   

Disposals                 -   

Balance at 31 December 2017           6,883 

Carrying amounts

At 31 December 2016                 -   

At 31 December 2017          54,628 

The Company's intangible asset represents investment on licence and technical agreement on Microsoft Navision ERP applications. The Microsoft

Navision ERP application was acquired in 2017 to be amortised to income statement over a period of three years.

Intangible assets amortisation charged to profit or loss amounts to N6.9m (2016-Nil) and is included as part of administrative expenses.

          (7,400)
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13 Investment property

The movement on these accounts was as follows:

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Cost

Balance at 1 January 604,468 604,468     

Balance at 31 December 2017 604,468 604,468

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 116,876 95,311

Charge for the year 21,297 21,565     

Balance at 31 December 2017 138,173 116,876

Carrying amounts 466,295 487,592

14 Available-for-sale financial assets

This comprises the following:

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Equity              -   161

Treasury bills              -   140,651

Money market instruments              -   46,325
             -   187,137

The movement on this account during the period was as follows:

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Balance at 1 January 187,137 172,119

Fair value change on investments during the year (Note 20(c)) 27,903 15,018

Proceeds realised on sale               -   

Balance at 31 December 2017              -   187,137

Investment property comprises the Company’s land and building at Abuja (hereinafter referred to as

Berger Paints Plaza). The Company completed and commissioned the Berger Paints Plaza in November 

2013. The Berger Paints Plaza is made up of 2,196 square meters of trade shops and offices available

for commercial rent. The property has been leased to third parties and is managed on behalf of the

Company by Gauge Construction Servicing Limited.

Each of the leases contains an initial non-cancellable period of one (1) year. No contingent rents are

charged. 

The fair value of the investment property as at year end has been estimated to be N2.02 billion. The

fair value was determined by external, independent property valuers with Financial Reporting Council

of Nigeria (FRC) No: FRC/2015/NIESV/00000013406.

Rental income generated from investment property during the year was N48.5 million (2016: N56.9

million).

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising from investment property that

generated rental income during the year was N3.40 million (2016: N1.97 million).

(215,040)
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15 Inventories

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Raw and packaging materials 342,088 353,115

Products in process 19,595 16,439

Finished products 246,924 216,405

Engineering spares and consumables 17,997 15,774

626,604 601,733

Impairment allowance
574,991 569,475

16 Trade and other receivables

(a) In thousands of naira

2017 2016

Trade receivables 143,126 151,426

Rent Receivable 69,542 56,541

Staff debtors 4,312 4,295

Accrued income              -   2,633

Deposit with Registrar      46,400 160,369

Outstanding balance on proceeds of disposal        8,761       98,547 

Interest receivable        2,923               -   

275,064 473,811

Impairment allowance
175,390 381,029

(b)

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Balance at 1 January 92,782 128,286

Impairment loss recognised 6,892 6,243

Trade receivables written off  -

Balance at 31 December 2017 99,674 92,782

(c)

2017 2016

Movement in trade and other receivables 205,639

Exchange gain (Note 6) 5,381 1,390

211,020

The value of raw and packaging materials, changes in finished products and products-in-process

consumed during the year and recognised in cost of sales amounted to ₦1.54 billion (2016: ₦1.37

billion). 

(51,613) (32,258)

Changes in trade and other receivables per statement of cash flows

(99,674) (92,782)

(41,747)

(114,969)

(113,579)

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks related to trade and other receivables is 

disclosed in Note 27(b).

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the 

year was as follows:

Reconciliation of changes in trade and other receivables included in statement of cash flows is as 

follows:
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17 Deposit for imports

18 Prepayments and advances

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Prepaid rent           311 2,300

Advance payment to suppliers 17,013 93,682

WHT receivables 21,535 18,291

Deposit for clearing charges              -   1,066

Prepaid insurance and others 7,580 7,901

           46,439 123,240

(a)

2017 2016

Movement in prepayment and advances 76,801 647,706

WHT credit notes previously impaired, now recovered             -   

Movement in WHT credit notes 353 19,858

Changes in prepayments and advances per statement of cash flows 49,909 667,564

19 Cash and cash equivalents

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Cash on hand 105 192

Balance with banks 449,078 252,907

Short term deposits with banks 306,564 233,850

Cash and cash equivalents 755,747 486,949

20 Capital and reserves

(a) Ordinary shares as at 31 December

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

    400,000    400,000 

Issued and fully paid 289,823,447 ordinary shares of 50k each 144,912 144,912

(b) Share premium

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

At 1 January 635,074 635,074

At 31 December 2017 635,074 635,074

Authorised 800,000,000 ordinary shares of 50k each 

The company's exposure to credit and market risk for financial assets is dislcosed in Note 27.

(27,245)

The deposits for imports represent amounts deposited with banks to fund letters of credit. These letters of credit are meant

to finance the importation of raw materials. The total value of deposit for imports as at year end amounted to N29.4 million

(2016: Nil).

Reconciliation of changes in prepayments and advances included in statement of cash flows is as follows:

Included in cash and cash equivalents are short term bank deposits with maturities from thirty (30) days to three (3)

months. 
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(c) Fair value reserve

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

At 1 January 64,400 54,188

Fair value change on available-for-sale investments (Note 14)      27,903 15,018

Related tax on gains on available-for-sale investments (Note 9(b))

Fair value reserve reclassified to profit or loss during the year             -   

At 31 December 2017              -   64,400

21 Trade and other payables

(a) Trade and other payables comprises:

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Trade payables 178,196 151,033

Customer deposits 117,011 115,767

Value Added Tax 16,845 1,008

Withholding Tax 34,043 32,327

PAYE 36,659 31,511

Short term employee payables (Note (c)) 8,531 163,721

Pension payable (Note (b)) 18,175 18,175

Other non-income taxes 19,603 9,506

Accruals 101,460 121,979

Other payables 26,873 34,124

           557,396 679,151

(b) Pension payable

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Balance at 1 January 18,175 4,443

Charge for the year 49,976 44,324

Payments

At 31 December 2017 18,175 18,175

(c) Short term employee payables

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Balance at 1 January 163,721 182,140

Charge for the  year 79,284             -   

Benefits paid

At 31 December 2017 8,531 163,721

(d)

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Movement in trade and other payables 49,472

Unrealised exchange loss             -   

Accrued additions to PPE (Note 11(g))  -

Changes in trade and other payables per 
statement of cash flows 42,072

(18,419)

Reconciliation of changes in trade and other payables included in statement of cash flows

The Company discontinued the staff gratuity benefits on December 31, 2015. During the current year, a subsequent

agreement was reached between the representatives of the staff trade and labour unions and the Company, resulting in

the discountinued gratuity benefit scheme being extended to 31 December 2016. The cost included in the profit or loss

was N72.3 million. All qualifying staff were paid with the outstanding balance of N8.5 million due to staff that were

yet to be paid as at year end.

     (83,374)

Short term employee payables represents the balance of the discontinued gratuity scheme payable to employees

currently in the employment of the Company. Employees are entitled to the balance accruing to them on or before exit

from the Company.

(234,474)

       (8,929)       (4,806)

The Company’s exposure to liquidity risks related to trade and other payables is disclosed in Note 27.

     (49,976)      (30,592)

(2,605)

(7,400)

(121,755)

(124,360)
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22 Deferred income 

Deferred income comprises:

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Government grants 73,612             -   

Advance rent income received 24,044 51,468 
97,656 51,468 

Non-current 71,579             -   

Current      26,077 51,468 
     97,656 51,468 

23 Loans and borrowings

In thousands of naira

Non-

current Current

liabilities liabilities Total

Investment property development financing arrangement 90,014 4,528 94,542

Bank of Industry loan 290,807      68,907 359,714
380,821 73,435 454,256

Non-

current Current

liabilities liabilities Total

Investment property development financing arrangement 122,281    1,781.00 124,062

Short term borrowings             -          3,802 3,802
122,281 5,583 127,864

(a) Terms and repayment schedule

In thousands of naira Currency

Nominal 

interest 

rate

Year of 

maturity

Face 

Value

Carrying 

amount

Face 

Value

Carrying 

amount

(i) Bank of Industry loan NGN 10% 2023 436,511 359,714              -               -   

(ii) Development financing 

arrangement NGN - 2025            -       94,542              -   124,062

(iii) Short term borrowings NGN 4% 2017            -               -          3,802 3,802

Total interest-bearing loans 436,511 454,256 3,802 127,864

2017 2016

2017

2016

Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included in Note 27.

Government grant arises as a result of the benefit received from below-market-interest rate government-assisted loans

(Bank of Industry loans) obtained to purchase items of machinery and equipment required to support the installation of the

automated water base paint production plant. The production plant is under construction and the grant will be amortised on

a systematic basis over the useful life of the production plant. 

Due to the fact that the production plant is not yet available for use as at year end, there has been no unwinding of the

government grant into profit or loss in current year.
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i) Bank of Industry Loan

ii) Investment property development financing arrangement

(iii) Short term borrowings

(b) Movement in loans and borrowings

2017 2016

Balance, beginning of year 127,864 124,062

Additions during the year 349,748 3,802

Repayments             -   

Interest accrued 33,976             -   

Balance, end of year 454,256 127,864

24 Dividends

The following dividends were declared and paid by the Company for the year.

Per share 2017 Per share 2016

 (kobo) N'000  (kobo) N'000

Dividend 50 144,912 75 217,368

This represents the dividend proposed for the preceding year, but declared in the current year

25 Dividend payable

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

At 1 January 325,452 270,568

Declared dividend 144,912 217,368

Payments

At 31 December 2017     321,127 325,452

(162,484)

These represent ex-staff members' entitlements which were converted to loans at an interest rate of 4%. The loans are

inclusive of the accrued interest at the end of the reporting period. This amount was paid during the year.

A sum of N74 million (2016: Nil) is recognised as government grant, being the difference between the low contract

interest rate and the fair value measurement using an effective market interest rate of 21%. This amount has been

treated as deferred income. As at 31 December 2017, interest expense of N55 million (2016: Nil) accrued on the

facility was also capitalised to capital work-in progress (Note 11(e)).

The Company engaged the services of Gauge Construction Servicing Limited (“the Contractor”) for the construction,

development and management of the Berger Paints Plaza based on a Memorandum of Understanding dated 20 March

2012. The consideration for the investment property development financing arrangement and the services provided by

the Contractor is 50% of the rental collections in respect of the property, after the deduction of expenses incurred in

the management of the property, for a period of 12 years from 1 November 2013 to 31 October 2025. The

consideration is deemed to be the full and final satisfaction of all fees and money due to the contractor in respect of the

arrangement. Accordingly, the Company’s obligation to the Contractor is measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method and based on the estimated cashflows specified above. 

The Company determines the repayment cash flows by estimating the occupancy, rentals and the expected collections

in respect of operating leases of the trade shops and offices available for commercial rent over the remaining period. 

(149,237)

(57,332)

The loan is a Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) intervention fund through Bank of Industry (BOI), and is secured through

a "duly executed Negative Pledge" (Bank Guarantee) in favour of Fidelity Bank Plc. The applicable interest rate is

10% per annum subject to review by the BOI in line with the prevailing market condions. The loan is repayable in

seventy monthly instalments (including twelve months moratorium between March 2017 to February 2018) at various

dates between March 2018 to January 2023. 

49



Berger Paints Nigeria Plc

Annual Report

31 December 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017

26 Related Parties

A. Transactions with key management personnel

i) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised the following:

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Short-term benefits 112,394 99,333

Post employment benefits 4,779 9,605

           -                -   

ii) Key management personnel transactions 117,173 108,938

In thousands of naira

Transaction 2017 2016 2017 2016

Supply of raw materials* 43,217 130,560 5,682 24,998

Supply of raw materials** 22,278       8,906             -           8,906 

Rental income*                  -         2,842             -                 -   

Recruitment services*** 1,176 3,549  - 1,029

Registrar's fees**** 4,855 3,780 5,750 945

*

Balance outstanding as 

at 31 December

Transaction values for the 

year ended 31 December

During the year, the Company bought various raw materials from Emychem Nigeria. Additionally, a

portion of residential apartment rented at Wemabod Estate was sub-leased to Emmychem. The

Managing Director of Emmychem is Mr. Raj Mangtani who is also a non-executive director on the

Board of Directors of Berger Paints Nigeria Plc. Amounts were billed based on normal market rates for

such supplies and were due and payable under normal payment terms.

Directors of the Company control about 2% of the voting shares of the Company. A number of key 

management personnel, or their related parties, hold positions in other companies that result in them 

having control or significant influence over these companies.

A number of these companies transacted with the Company during the year. The terms and conditions of 

these transactions were no more favourable than those available, or which might reasonably be expected

to be available, in similar transactions with non-key management personnel related companies on an

arm’s length basis. 

The aggregate value of transactions and outstanding balances related to key management personnel and

entities over which they have control or significant influence were as follows. 

Related parties include the Company's shareholders, directors, their close family members and any

employee who is able to exert a significant influence on the operating policies of the Company. Key

management personnel are also regarded as related parties. Key management personnel are those

persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the

entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.
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**

***

****

B.

27 Financial instruments – Fair values and financial risk management

(a) Classification of financial instruments and fair values

2017

In thousands of naira

Loans and 

receivables

Available-

for-sale 

financial 

assets Level 1 Level 2 Total

Financial assets not measured at fair value

 
Trade and other receivables           175,390                -   

Cash and cash equivalents           755,747                -   
          931,137                -   

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Loans and borrowings 454,256                -               -   481,724   481,724 

Trade and other payables* 432,071                -   

Dividend payable 321,127                -   
       1,207,454                -   

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities,

including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and

financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Fair valueCarrying Amount

The Company bought various raw materials from Clayton Finance Limited. The Managing Director of Clayton is Mr.

Sanjay Datwani who is also a non-executive director on the Board of Directors of Berger Paints Nigeria Plc. Amounts

were billed based on normal market rates for such supplies and were due and payable under normal payment terms.

The Company engaged the services of Excel Professional Services Limited for the recruitment of certain management

staff during the year. The Managing Director of the company is Dr. Oladimeji Alo, and he is also the chairman of the

Board of Directors of Berger Paints Nigeria Plc. Amounts were billed based on normal market rates for such services and

were due and payable under normal payment terms.

Meristem Registrars Limited acts as the Registrars for the Company. The Group Managing Director of the company is

Mr. Oluwole Abegunde, and he is also a non-executive director on the Board of Directors of Berger Paints Nigeria Plc. 

Other related party transactions

The Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in Ghana, Lewis Berger Ghana Limited, on 23 October

2013. As at 31 December 2017, the subsidiary is dormant and had not commenced operations. The Company has

not prepared consolidated financial statements on the account of materiality.
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31 December 2016

Financial assets measured at fair value

Available-for-sale Investments

 - Equity                    -               161          161             -            161 

 - Treasury bills                    -        140,651   140,651             -     140,651 

 - Money market instruments                    -          46,325             -       46,325     46,325 

Financial assets not measured  at fair value

Trade and other receivables           381,029                -   

Cash and cash equivalents           486,949                -   
          867,978      187,137 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Loans and borrowings           127,864                -               -   127,864   127,864 

Trade and other payables* 586,624                -   

Dividend payable 325,452                -   
       1,039,940                -   

(a) Financial instruments in level 1

(b) Financial instruments in level 2

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

(i) quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

(ii) other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, sales prices of comparable properties in close

proximity, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance

sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,

dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, those prices represent actual and regularly

occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. 

The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments

are included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise treasury bills classified as available for sale.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation

techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely

as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are

observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

*Trade and other payables excludes statutory deductions such as Value Added Tax, Withholding Tax, PAYE,

Pension and other non-income taxes payable.

52



Berger Paints Nigeria Plc

Annual Report

31 December 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(b) Financial risk management

Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

● Credit risk

● Liquidity risk

● Market risk

(i) Risk management framework

(ii) Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Trade and other receivables 175,390 381,029

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash at hand) 755,642 486,757

Available for sale financial assets                    -   187,137
931,032 1,054,923

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to

credit risk at the reporting date was:

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's

objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital.

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the

Company’s risk management framework. The Board of Directors has established the Strategy and Risk

Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management

policies. The Committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company,

to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies

and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The

Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and

constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company's Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk

management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to

the risks faced by the Company. The Company's Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by the Internal

Audit Function, outsourced to Bamidele Daramola & Co. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc

reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails

to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and

investments.
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Trade and other receivables 

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Trade receivables 67,546 111,537

Deposit with company registrar 46,400 160,369

Other receivables 61,444 109,123
175,390 381,029

(a)  Trade receivables

Concentration of risk

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Wholesale customers 3,478 1,800

Retail customers 116,882 153,274

Other 22,766 49,245
143,126 204,319

In thousands of naira

Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net

Neither past due nor impaired                    -              -   81,133                    -   81,133

Past due 1–90 days 17,632                    -   17,632 21,431                    -   21,431

Past due 91–180 days 103,875 (53,961) 49,914 5,375                    -   5,375

Over 180 days 21,619 (21,619)            -        96,380 (92,782)           3,598 
143,126 (75,580) 67,546 204,319 (92,782) 111,537

At 31 December 2017, the ageing of trade receivables that were not impaired was as follows:

The Company does not hold collateral on these balances. The company believes that the unimpaired amounts that

are past due are still collectible in full based on historic payment behaviour and analysis of customer credit risk.

2017 2016

The Company’s exposure to credit risk in respect of trade recievables is influenced mainly by the individual

characteristics of each customer. The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is

analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and

conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes external ratings when available, and in some cases bank

references. Credit sales limits are established for each customer and are reviewed regularly. The concentration of

credit risk is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base. The Company has pledged no trade receivables

during the year.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of

trade receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to

individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of similar assets in

respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified.

At 31 December 2017, the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by type of counterparty was as

follows;

Carrying amount
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(b) Deposit with Company's Registrar

(c) Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents:

(iii)Liquidity risk 

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of ₦752 million at 31 December 2017 (2016: ₦486 million), which

represents its maximum credit exposure on these assets. The cash and cash equivalents are held with reputable

commercial banks.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its

financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to

managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities

when due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company uses standard costing to cost its products, which assist it in monitoring cash flow requirements and

optimizing its cash return on investments. The Company aims to maintain the level of cash and cash equivalents

at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities (other than trade payables) over the next

60 days. The Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together

with expected cash outflows on trade and other payables. 

This represents amounts held with the Company Registrar in respect of payments of declared dividends to

shareholders on behalf of the Company. This represents the Company's maximum credit exposure to the financial

asset. 

The Company's registrar is Meristem Registrars Limited, which has a history of reputable ratings. Based on past

experience, the Company has not incurred impairment loss in respect of the deposits with the Company's

Registrar as the amount is deemed recoverable.

The Company believes that the amount is collectible based on subsequent payments made by the counterparty

and credit worthiness. Other components of other recievables include staff debtors and accrued income which are

deemed recoverable based on historical payment behaviours and subsequent collections.

This mainly represents the rent receivable on the operating leases of the Company's properties.

Consequently, the Company has not incurred impairment loss in respect of other receivables.
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Exposure to liquidity risk

2017

In thousands of naira Carrying 

Amount
Total

6 months or 

less

6-12 

months
1 – 2 years 2 – 5 years

More than 

5 years

Loans and borrowings 454,256 454,256             29,793 74,483 178,752 148,972 22,256

Trade and other  payables* 432,071 432,071 432,071  -  -  -  -

Dividend payable 321,127 321,127 321,127  -  -  -  -

1,207,454 1,207,454 782,991    74,483.00 178,752 148,972 22,256

2016

In thousands of naira Carrying 

Amount
Total

6 months or 

less

6-12 

months
1 – 2 years 2 – 5 years

More than 

5 years

Loans and borrowings 127,864 127,864               3,802                 -   39,383 33,179 51,500

Trade and other  payables* 586,624 586,624           586,624  -  -  -  -

Dividend payable 325,452 325,452 325,452  -  -  -  -

1,039,940 1,039,940 915,878                 -   39,383 33,179 51,500

(iv) Market risk

Contractual cash flows

Contractual cash flows

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices that will affect the Company’s income or the value of its

holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing returns.

*Trade and other payables excludes statutory deductions such as Value Added Tax, Withholding Tax, PAYE, Pension and other non-income taxes payable.

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest

payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements:
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1. Currency risk

Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk is as follows:

US$ € GBP US$ € GBP

Cash and cash equivalents                  54,700               1,221              356         34,994           1,643              356 

The following significant exchange rates were applied:

Naira 2017 2016 2017 2016

US$ 1 332.40 253.02         360.00 305.00

€ 1 376.60 278.46         432.30 322.11

GBP 1 429.10 341.35         487.00 375.18

Sensitivity analysis

In thousands of Naira Strengthening Weakening

2017

US$ (5% movement)                       985                (985)

€ (5% movement)                         26                  (26)

GBP (5% movement)                           9                    (9)

2016

US$ (20% movement)                    2,135             (2,135)

€ (20% movement)                       106                (106)

GBP (20% movement)                         27                  (27)

Profit or loss

The Company is exposed to currency risk on purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The functional currency of the

Company is primarily the Naira. The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are Naira (N), Euro (€), US Dollars (US$) and Pounds Sterling (GBP).

The currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange rates.

Average rate during the year Year end spot rate

A reasonably possible strengthening /(weakening) of the naira against all other currencies at 31 December 2017 would have affected the measurement of financial instruments

denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest and

inflation rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast purchases. 

2017 2016

The Company's policy is to ensure that its net exposure in respect of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are kept to an acceptable level. The

Company monitors the movement in foreign currencies on an ongoing basis and takes appropriate actions as necessary.
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2. Interest rate risk

Fixed rate instruments

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Financial liabilities:

Short term borrowings           73,435                5,583 

Long term borrowing         380,821            122,281 

        454,256            127,864 
         (501.10)             (698.86)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

(c) Capital management

2017 2016

In thousands of naira

Total liabilities      1,670,280         1,498,084 

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents        (755,747)           (486,949)

Adjusted net debt         914,533         1,011,135 

Total Equity      2,641,145         2,604,181 

Net debt to equity ratio               0.35                  0.39 

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market

confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital

as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. This is done by using a ratio of adjusted net

debt to adjusted equity. Adjusted net debt has been defined as total liabilities, comprising loans and

borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity. 

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31st December 2017 was as follows.

The Company adopts a policy of ensuring that all its interest rate risk exposure is at fixed rate. This is

achieved by entering into fixed rate instruments.

Norminal amount

Interest rate risk comprises interest price risk that results from borrowings at fixed rates and the interest

cashflow risk that results from borrowings at variable rates. The Board of Directors is responsible for

setting the overall duration and interest management targets. The Company's objective is to manage its

interest rate exposure through careful borrowing profiling and use of heterogeneous borrowing sources.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

The Company does not have any variable rate financial assets and liabilities as at the end of the year

(2016: Nil).
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28 Operating leases

The Company leases out its investment property (see Note 12)

a. Future minimum lease payments

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Less than one year      53,478 41,366

Between one and five years      22,483 28,400
     75,961 69,766

b. Amounts recognised in profit or loss

29 Provision of Non-audit Services

Description of Non-audit Services Fee Paid

In thousands of naira ₦

i. Tax services 1,500

ii Transfer pricing advisory services 4,200

30 Contingencies

31 Subsequent events

At 31 December, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are receivable as 

Investment property rentals of ₦48 million for the year ended 31 December, 2017 (2016: ₦56

million) was included in ‘Revenue’ (see Note 4). Depreciation expense on the investment property

was included in ‘Cost of sales’ (see Note 7 and 12).

There are no significant subsequent events, which could have had a material effect on the state of affairs

of the Company as at 31 December 2017 that have not been adequately provided for or disclosed in the

financial statements.

The Directors are of the opinion that all contingencies and other financial commitments have been taken

into account in the preparation of these financial statements. There were no pending litigations or claims

involving the Company as at year end (2016: Contingent asset of ₦501 million). 

The details of non-audit services and the applicable fees paid during the year ended 31 December 2017

were:
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32 Operating segments

a. Basis of segmentation

Reportable segments Operations

Paints and allied products Manufacturing, distributing and selling of paints and allied products

Contract revenue Rendering of painting services

Investment property rental income Investment property rentals

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as described in Notes 3.

b. Information about reportable segments

In thousands of naira

Paints and 

allied 

products

Contract 

revenue

Investment 

property 

rental 

income Unallocated Total

2017

External revenues       2,994,490        49,500           48,454                   -         3,092,444 

Finance income                   -                  -                     -              29,888            29,888 

Finance costs                   -                  -            (17,861)          (12,095)          (29,956)

Depreciation & amortization          (90,872)         (1,502)          (21,297)                   -          (113,671)

Impairment loss on trade receivables            (6,892)                -                     -                     -              (6,892)

Reportable segment profit before tax          275,672        24,600             9,296                   -            309,568 

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit before income tax, as

included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Company’s Management Committee. Segment profit is used to measure performance as

management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these

industries.

The Company has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the Company’s strategic business units. The strategic business units offer different

products and services, and are managed separately because they require different process and marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the

Company’s Management Committee review internal management reports on a weekly basis. The following summary describes the operations in each of the

Company’s reportable segments:
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Paints and 

allied 

products

Contract 

revenue

Investment 

property 

rental 

income Unallocated Total

2016

External revenues       2,493,395        52,476           56,953                   -         2,602,824 

Finance income                   -                  -                     -              28,365            28,365 

Finance costs                   -                  -            (34,246)               (666)          (34,912)

Depreciation          (83,324)         (1,754)          (21,565)                   -          (106,643)

Impairment loss on trade receivables            (6,243)                -                     -                     -              (6,243)

Reportable segment profit before tax          205,579        37,350             1,142                   -            244,071 

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities and other material items

Revenues

There are no significant reconciling items between the reportable segment revenue and revenue for the year.

Profit or loss

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

Total profit or loss for reportable segments         309,568          244,071 

Unallocated finance income           29,888            28,365 

Unallocated finance costs          (12,095)               (666)

Profit before taxation         327,361          271,770 

Other material items

There are no significant reconciling items between other material items for the reportable segments and Company total.

Major customer

Assets and liabilities by reportable segments are not presented to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (Management Committee) on a regular basis. Therefore,

information on segment assets and liabilities has not been presented.

Revenue from one customer does not represent up to 10% of the Company's total revenue. Therefore, information on major customers is not presented.
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In thousands of naira

2017 % 2016 %

Sales 3,092,445 2,602,824

Other income 183,441 235,466

3,275,886 2,838,290

Bought in materials and services

- Imported

- Local

Value added 1,004,518 100 910,196 100

Distribution of value added

To Employees:

Employee benefit expenses 588,231 59 566,695 62

To Providers of Finance:

Interest on loans         (3)            (4)

To Government:

Income tax              32,437 3 60,546 7

Retained in the business as:

Depreciation and amortisation 106,787 11 106,643 12

Deferred taxation              60,743           6 (1)

To augument reserves 246,276 25 224,007 25

1,004,518 100 910,196 100

Value added is wealth created by the efforts of the Company and its employees and its allocation between

employees, shareholders, government and re-investment for the creation of future wealth.

(311,134)

(1,960,234) (1,724,676)

             (34,912)

             (12,783)

             (29,956)

(203,418)
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5 Year Financial Summary

In thousands of naira

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Funds employed

Share capital 144,912        144,912 144,912 144,912 144,912

Share premium 635,074        635,074 635,074 635,074 635,074

Fair value reserve                  -            64,400 54,188 39,636 30,283

Retained earnings 1,861,159      1,759,795 1,753,156 1,640,208 1,665,988

Shareholder's fund 2,641,145      2,604,181 2,587,330 2,459,830 2,476,257

Current liabilities 1,080,533      1,306,347 1,143,703 816,531 798,623 
Long term liabilities 589,747        191,737 164,837 363,784 352,718 

4,311,424      4,102,265 3,895,870 3,640,145 3,627,598 

Assets employed

Non current assets 2,729,446      2,541,572 1,727,602 1,564,445 1,587,220 

Current assets 1,581,978      1,560,693 2,168,268 2,075,700 2,040,378 

4,311,424      4,102,265 3,895,870 3,640,145 3,627,598 

In thousands of naira

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Revenue 3,092,445      2,602,824 3,022,264 3,082,930 2,710,986 

Profit before income tax 339,456        271,770 565,212 249,258 342,767 

Profit for the year 246,276        224,007 330,316 148,808 257,580 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax      18,974.00          10,212 14,552 33,026 66,605 

Declared dividend        144,912        217,368 217,368 202,876 152,157 

Per 50k share data:

Basic and diluted earnings per share (kobo)                 85                 77               114                 51 89

Declared dividend per share (kobo)                 50                 75                 75                 70 52

Net assets per share (kobo)                   9                   9                   9                   8 9

 289,823,447  289,823,447  289,823,447 217367585
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